
 

 

 

 
October 31, 2023 

 

Committee of Adjustment 

101 Centrepointe Drive 

Nepean, ON    K2G 5K7 

 

Dear Committee Members: 

 

RE:  290 Holmwood Avenue (Lot 89 & 90 of Registered Plan No.108654) 

 

Please find the attached application for Minor Variances and consent at 290 

Holmwood Avenue in the Glebe Neighbourhood.  This urban property is located 

in the R3P[1474] zone and currently consists of two legal lots with one, single-

detached dwelling that straddles both. 

 

This is an underutilized urban lot with enough area and width that can 

accommodate 4 semi-detached dwelling units, as-of-right, in place of the 

existing single detached house. It is proposed to demolish the existing dwelling, 

to sever the lots into a total of four parcels, and construct two, 3-storey, semi-

detached dwellings. The proposed design responds to challenging site 

conditions, notably a significant grade change of more than a full storey from 

the front of the property to the rear, and overhead hydro lines along the front of 

the property.  

 

To date we have engaged with city planning staff, forestry staff, the ward 

councilor’s office, the Glebe Community Association, and our immediate 

neighbours. 

 

The proposed variances are: 

 

a) To permit a reduced minimum rear yard setback that is 25% of the lot 

depth (6.9m in this case) whereas the bylaw requires a rear yard setback 

of 30% of the lot depth (8.24m in this case). [Zoning By-law #2008-250: 

Section 144, Table 144A(iii)] 

b) To permit front steps/landing to extend to within 0.25m from the front lot 

line, whereas the bylaw requires that front steps be no closer than 0.6m, 

when at or below the first-floor level. [Zoning By-law #2008-250: Section 65, 

Table 65(5)(b)(i)] 

c) To permit a front-facing garage within the Mature Neighbourhoods 

Overlay, where such a garage is not the dominant pattern of the 

Streetscape Character Analysis.  The bylaw requires that within the 

Mature Neighbourhoods Overlay, no such garage or carport is 

permitted except subject to the Streetscape Character Analysis 

and Table 140A [Zoning By-law #2008-250: Section 140, Table 140A]. 

 

Each of the proposed variances responds to the challenging site conditions and 

context. 
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For variance a) the discussion begins with the placement of the front yard 

setback. Due to the overhead hydro lines along the front, we set the front wall of 

the proposed dwellings at the maximum 3.0m front yard setback (rather than the 

1.5m minimum).  This allows us to meet the hydro clearances and allows enough 

front yard depth for the length of stair run needed to access the front entrance.  

The 3m front setback also more closely reflects the streetscape context. As the 

proposed front yard setback is 1.5m greater than the bylaw requires, the 

proposed reduction of the rear yard setback, by 1.34m, roughly corresponds with 

this. The purpose of the variance is to respond to context rather than to increase 

the buildable area of the proposed homes. The grade continues to rise towards 

the rear (south) lot line in the backyard with the help of an existing retaining wall. 

The grade elevation of the neighbouring rear properties is significantly higher 

than that of the subject property.  This, as well as the presence of existing trees 

along the rear property line, helps to minimize the impact of this variance on the 

rear neighbors.   

 

Variance b) is proposed to address the challenge of stair access to the principal 

entry on the steeply sloping site. The main living level is one storey above the 

street to allow for at-grade access to the higher rear yard. In addition to shifting 

the dwellings towards the rear (as per variance a) discussion above), we 

lowered the front entrance and den from the main living level by 3’, but still 

require that the stair extend to 0.25m to the property line to allow enough room 

for all necessary steps and landings. 

 

Variance c), to permit front facing garages, is also a response to the topography 

of the site. Where on a flat site it might be considered to provide a shared 

driveway to rear yard parking, the steep slope makes this impossible. 

 

When looking at the character of the street, although not the majority, many 

dwelling units nearby have front facing attached garages.  It is also worth noting 

that the existing house on this property has an attached, front-facing garage. To 

diminish their presence on the streetscape, we have recessed the garage doors 

under the front terraces (and further back from the front setback line).  The 

garage door wall is also setback 0.6m from the edge of the front entrance 

landing (see site plan). 

 

We believe that the proposed application meets the four tests for minor 

variances: 

- The variances are minor in nature.   

- The variances are a desirable and appropriate use of the property. 

- The general intent and purpose of the Zoning by-law is maintained, as the 

proposed variances are compatible with the existing pattern of the 

neighbourhood. 

- The general intent and purpose of the Official Plan is maintained, as the 

proposed dwelling contributes to the development of a diverse urban 

neighbourhood.    

 

An additional challenge of the site’s condition is the presence of many mature 

and aging trees. We have carefully considered the impact this development has 



 

 

 

on the site’s existing trees.  As it’s currently an oversized lot with only one 

detached dwelling, there is a lot of vegetation on the site filling the vacant 

space.  Our primary goal with this development is to take an underutilized urban 

site and develop to a level of density that is reflected in the broader 

neighbourhood and the R3 zone. This does require the removal of several mature 

trees.  In our efforts, we are committed to retaining as many trees on site as 

possible and planting new trees in the rear yard and on the city’s right-of-way. 

We have engaged a professional arborist (Dendron Forestry Services), with city 

forestry staff and with our neighbours, and will continue to work with all parties to 

address the challenge of optimizing tree coverage, through as much tree 

retention and replacement as possible.  

 

In closing, because of the challenges that come with this site (primarily the grade 

change, the hydro lines, and the number of trees) we seek the support of the 

committee, planning/forestry, and the community so that we can develop this 

site to its full potential. 

 

I trust the documentation submitted sufficiently demonstrates the rationale to 

require these minor variances.  

 

 
Jennifer Adams 

Hobin Architecture Inc. 


